BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION

California Bus Association,
On behalf of Amador Bus Lines,

‘ Charter Complaint #2003-01
Complainant 49 U.S.C. Sections 5303, 5304,
5306, 5307, and 5323

v
_ Saéramcntd Regional Transit District,
"Respondent.
DECISION
INTRODUCTION

On March 6, 2003, the California Bus Association (CBA) filed this complaint with the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) alleging that the Sacramento chmnal Transit

District (RT) has violated the conditipns placed on the receipt of Federal assistance by the

- Federal transit laws (49 U.S.C. Chapter 53) by instituting the Downtown Circulator
service, which among other things, replaced a service operated by a private operator,
Amador Bus Lines, under contract to the State of California Department of General

Services (DGS). Afier reviewing the allegations ang the filings of the parties, FTA
concludes as follows:

v that RTs Downtown Circylator is not impermissible charter service under FTA's
charter service regulation at 49 CFR Part 604; that RT’s Downtown Circulator is
“mass transportation” within the meaning of the Federal transit laws; and,
accordingly, that the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(d)(1) regarding a public
authority’s prowsmn of charter service in compennon with a private operator of’
charter bus service do not apply to RT’s scrwcc, and

» thar since Amador’s shutile service contract thh DGS was for charter service, not .
mass transportation service, the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(a)(1) regarding- a

pubhc authority’s provision of mass uansportatmn service in competition with 1
private operator of mass transportation service do not apply; that with regard to
participation by the private sector, RT has met the minimum startory
requirements for public notice and comment in section 5307; and that while it
appears that RT could have Gone more to explore the use of private sector
providers in this situation, RT has met the minimum requirements of section
5306.
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- CBA’s complamt

Under its contract wnh DGS Amador provxded shutile service for the exclusive beneﬁt
of state employees parking in state lots.. ‘Sometime in 2002, the State contacted RT to -
determine whether RT could add new routes to its downtown service area that would
meet the rieeds of its employees who travel between State parking lots and State office
'bulldmgs As aresult of these discussions, RT developed the Downtown Circulator
service (also refcrred to as the Capital Shutrle), which now consists of three fixed routes
" numbered 141, 142, and 143 within the Central City of Sacramento. As apart of this
plan RT also changcd the ﬁ'cquency of 1ts prewously exxsung Route 140,

This expansmn of RT’s service is prowded by FI‘A*funded CNG-powcrcd buses. DGS
and RT eptered into an agreement whereby DGS compensates RT for the additional costs
of increasing downtown service in consideration of RT’s acceptance of the State .~
employee ID card as proof of fare payment along these new routes. Passengers who do
not possess a State ID-card pay the apphcahle fare. DGS purchases Ccntral.Cny Pass&s !
for its employees ata dlscounted rate.

On J anuazy 28 2003 DGS nonﬁed Amador that its conuact would not be renewed wheu
it expired on Apnl 7, 2003. In its March complaint, CBA rcqucsted that FTA mvesngatv,'
alleging that RT violated private sector participation requirements under 49 U.S.C, 5303
(£)(4), 5304(d), 5306(a) and 5307(c)(2) and (6) by failing to inform or involve the private
sector in its plan to use Federal assistance to purchase expanswn busas for the purpose c»f
dxsplacmg the private operator.

CBA also cites 49 U.S.C. 5323(a)(1)(A) and (B) in arguing that RT"s federally assisted
expansion buses are being used, unlawfully, to prcvent an existing pnvatc transportauon
operator from fairly competing to provide this service.

CBA also asserts RT’s Downtown Circulator service violates FTA’s [charter regulations,
arguing that the Downtown Circulator is not mass transportation service as defined by 49
U.S.C. 5302(a)(7) and 49 CFR Part 604. CBA cites the agreement with DGS for RT 1o
provide shuttle service for DGS employees and the RT planning documents descnbxng

DGS? approaching RT to operate | thc service needcd 10 replacc thc shuttlc service
performed by Amador

RT’s response -

On March 20, 2003, RT responded to the complaint. RT re_laicd the history of its
development of the Daowntown Circulator service, mcluding its public hearing in June
1999 for the program of projects that included expansion of its CNG fleet. At that time,
RT did not have a specxﬁc plan for deployxng these new buses, other than to meet’
growing demand for service ia the region. In addition, RT anticipated that it mightneed
more buses to accommodate the service changes that would be required with the openiag
of the South Sacramento and the Amtrak-Folsom Light Rail Corridor Light Rail
Extension projects. - Last year, RT developed the service plan 1o determine where to
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deploy these new buses, which are only now bemg dehvercd o RT. RT argued itmet the

‘private enterprise consultation obhgatxons regarding procurement of these buses with its -
- published notices.

R’I‘ argued that u comphes with the FTA public pamcxpanon rcqulrement by publishing a
notice annually that solicits private enterprise participation in RT’s development ofits
. program of projects to be funded under FTA grants. RT also publishes,a niotice of its -
program of projects inviting comments before the program is adopted, combmmg this
‘notice with its budget pubhc hcanng notice. It prowded a copy of the notices for the last
three years., The notice in June of 1999 included expansion of RT’s bus fleet, In addition,
RT published a public hearing notice in August 2002 for the new Downtown Clrculator .
service. RT states that its public notice progess was reviewed as partof FTA’s 1997 and

2000 memual rev1ews and that no deﬁclcncxcs in the public parucxpauon process were
‘noted.

RT states thart althotigh the new rouses are demgnad 10 serve State employces, the -
Downtown Circulator | service is part of RT’s fixed route system of mass ortation
and is not charter service as defined by the three factors cited by FTA: (1 ; open o the

public and not closed door, (2) designed to benefit the public at large, and (3) under the
control of the recipient.

In rcsponse to CBA’s argument that section 5323 applm 10 thls sxtuatxon, RT argues that
FT‘A funds are not used to operate the compctmg service and that the shuttle service . -

operated by Amador was charter service, not “mass tmnsportanon service™ protected by _
the statute.

Fmally, RT argues that CBA’s protest is untimely because Amador knew on, January 27,
2003 that RT would be operating this service because it testified at RT’s public hearing’
on that day but waited until March 8" to submit its protest.

RT believes the MPO for the Sacramento metropolitan urban area hds properly

provxded the notxce rcqum:d by sections 5303 (t)(4), 5304(d) and 5307(c)(2) and
- (6).

CBA’s rcsponse to RT -
On Apnl 7, 2003 CBA responded to RT’s March 20 and 25 rwponses, stating as follows: -

1 RT isnotin comphance with private sector pahxcxpatmn requxrements because it
" did not disclose that its 1999 program of projects bus expansion plan would-
include the Downtown Circulator service. F urthcr, CBA states that RT's Auguut

. 26, 2002 public heanngs did not include the pnvate scctor in consultanon
regardmg this new service. '

2. RT is not excused from FTA ‘private sector partxclpanon reqmrements because it

~ does not receive FTA operating assistance.
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3. Amador has standing 1o be protected undcr section 5323 because of its likelihood

~ 10 be financially injured. -

4. -RT’s Downtown Circulator is not mass tmnSponatxon, but charter under contract
to DGS.' RT3 1992 Sacramento Downtown Shuttle Feasibility Smdy Draft Final
Report does not siupport the new sérvice in question. CBA wmaintains there is no
demonstrable demand for the Downtown Shurtle other than to serve State
employees. Further, all of RT’s public notices in 2002 1dent1fy this service as
“New Downtown State Shuttles.” CBA argues that while the service agreement
with DGS was converted into & purchasc of Central City passes, the subs:dy from

DGS remains substannally the same. .

5. CBA’s complaint is not untimely because whlle RT approved the Downtown'

Shurtle Service on Septembet 30, 2002, it was not until a February 14, 2003 .

meeting with DGS that CBA was told that DGS was nor interested in pursumg
discussions with CBA.

"RT’s second response

On June 3, 2003, RT provided additional information regarding its comphance with 49
U.S.C. sections 5306 and 5307 regarding private enterprise participation. RT responded
thar the requirement in section 5306(a) applies to plans and programs dcveIOped by the
metropolitan planning orgamzatmn, in this case the Sacramento Area Council of
Govemnments. RT states it complied with section 5307(c) reqmrcments for participation
of mterested parties, including private transponatxon providers.

.DISCUSSION

1. Charter Service.

The threshold issue is whether the service provided by RT is impermissible charter
service or permissible mass transponanon The definition of charter service found in
FTA’s regulations at 49 CFR 604.5(¢) is as follows:

{T]ransportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded under the Acts of
a group of persons who pursuant to a common purpose, under a single.
contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicle or service, have acquired the
exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travel together under an itinerary
either specified in advance or modified after having lefi the place of
origin. ‘

Charter service is ilsually a one-lime provision of service over which the
passenger, not the service provider, exercises control. 52 Fed. Reg. 11916, 11919
(April 13, 1987). In contrast, the Federal transit laws define “mass

 transportation” as tmnspertauon that provides regular and continuing general or
special transponatmn to the public. 49 U.S.C.§ 5302(a)(7). In the preamble 10
its charter service regulation, FTA has amculated other fearures that flow
logically from this definition:
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Fxrst mass. transponatlon is under the control of the reclplent Generally,
“the recipient is responmble for setting the route, rate, and schedule, and
deciding what equipment isused. Second, the service is designed to
benefir the public at large ‘and not some speclal organization such as a
private club. Third, mass transportation is open to the pubhc and is not

~closed door Thus, anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be
) permmed to do so.

52 Fed. Reg.' 11920. |

Gwen the many varying scenarios existng in the transportation mdustry, FTA has "
determined that a balancing test must be used to determijne the nature ofthe =~
service involved in any complains filed with FTA. As the preamble to the charter
regulation points out, there is no fixed definition of charter service, and the

characteristics cited by F’IA are 1llustrauve, not .exhausuve 52 Fed. Reg. 11919- |
11920.

Under the control of the récip?em

The charter service cntep:la mclude bus transportanon under a single contragtata
fixed rate for the vehicle or service. FTA has previously determined that control
of fares and schedules is the critical clement in the balancing test FTA uses 1o
distinguish charter service from mass transportanon Seymour, a1 10.
Compensation on the basis of hours of service is evidence of charter 0perauons
‘whereas individual fares paid by each rider indicates the servxce is mass
transponanon. Seymour at 9-10

The RT and DGS arrangement, the Central City Pass Agreement, provides that
RT retains control of routes and servxce Such pass agreements are not features of
charter service, instead consntutmg ‘eroup demand” service as contemplated by
‘Q&A Number 27(¢), “Charter Questions and Answers,” 52 Fed. Reg. 42248,
42252 (November 3, 1987), which provides that group demand service is not
charter service where groups such as employees of a common otkplacc contract
with a transit authority for service and cach individual pays his or her own fare, so
long as the authority controls routes and service and the service is open door

. Designed o bez_zeﬁt (he, publzc at la‘rge

‘Service is designed to benefit the public at large when it serves the needs of the
general public, instead of those of “'some special organization such as a private
club.” 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 (April 13, 1987). Annett Bus Lines v, City of
- Tallahassee, FL-TALTRAN/90-02-01 (April 28, 1992) 'In this regard, CBA has
provided evidence that the Downtown Circulator service was structured to meet
the needs of State employees to travel from parking lots to State office buildings,
- that it is a service designed 1o substinite for the State’s contract service with
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- Arnador, and that the service since mstxtuted carries almost exclusively State
employees. The record supports these assertions; however, none of these facts,
taken into consideration with the information pmvxded by RT, results in the'

conclusion that the Downtown Clrculator service is anything bur mass
transportaton.

'While the service is designed to accommodate the State cmployees pnmanly, itis
not restricted 1o their exclusive use, but is available to anyone wishing to board;
moreover, this service has been integrated into RT's larger route structure,’
providing greater transportation connectivity in the downtown area for riders of
the fixed Toute system. FTA finds that the semce ‘benefits the public-at large.

.(CBA argucs that RT’s 1992 study supports a different downtown service
configuration, not the Downtown Circulator service. FTA is not willing to .
substitute its _]udgmgm for the grantee’s in this regard.)

Open to the public and not closed door.

In dctemnmng whether service is truly “open daor,” FTA looks both at the level
of ridership by the general public, as opposed toa pamcular group, and at the
intent of the recipient in offering the service. The intent to make service open
door can be discented in 'the attempts to make the service known and available to
the public. FTA thas takes into account the efforts a recipient has made to market
the service. Generally, this effort is best evidenced by publicarion of the service
in the recipient’s preprinted schedules. Washington Motor Coach Assoczatxon V.
Mumicipality of Metropoluan Seattle, WA-09/87-01 (March 21, 1988). FTA has
also interpreted “open door” to mean a substantial public ndershxp and/or an
attempt by the transit authority to widely marked the service, Blue Grass Tours
and. Charter v. Lexington Transit Authority, URO-TII-1987. The posting of bus
stop sigas and connections te other transportation rouies are also considered
indicators of “opportumty for public ridership.” Seymour Charter Bus Lines v.
Knoxville Transit Authority, TN-09/88-01 (November 29, 1989).

RT advises that the Dowmown Circulator routes and schedules are set out in the
pocket timetables that will be supplied in each bus assigned to these routes. In
addition, the new routes are included in the June 2003 edition of SRT’s Bus and
Lxghtraﬂ Timetable Book. FTA finds that SRT has demonstrated that the service
is, in fact, open door.

Accordmgly, FTA concludes thiat RT’s Downtown Circulator is permissible mass
nansponauon not charter service, within the meaning of the Federal transit laws.
We now turn 1o the qucstxon of RT’s compliance with the private sector -

, partxcxpauon requirements in the Federal transit laws.




2. Private Sector _lnyqu.ein‘e’ht.’ "
Compliance with pﬁvate' sebiér p_afzicipatiou ;equir"ement;s

The relevant provmons of 49US.C. 5306 focus mamly on including the pnvatc sector in
parhcxpatmg in local transit programs, ensuring that hdequiate Gompensation is prowded a
privare provider when its transit facilities-and equipment are acquired by a state or local

government authonty, and protecting private provaders of transn from compcuuon ‘with
federally assxstcd transit providers. =

Fedcral tmnsn law (49 US.C. 5303 (f)(4)) and: the Jomt F’I‘A/cheral nghWay

- Administration planmng rcgulanons direct special aitention to the c¢oncerns of | pnvate
transit providers it planning and project developmient, speci ifically requiring that pnvatc
transit provxdcrs, as well as other interested parties, be afforded an adequate oppormnity

.10 bc mvolved in the early stages of the plan devclopmem and update process (23 CFR
450. 322) ’

FTA does not impose prescnpnve requirements for deterxmmng whether a grant apphca: it
“has made- adequate efforts 1o integrate private enterprise in its wansit program, as -
explained in the FTA Notice “Private Enterprise Participation,” dated April 26, 1994 (59

Fed. Reg. 21890 et seq. (1994)); FTA Circular 9030.1C, Page V-39, Para. 24 Przvate |
Entemrzse Cancerns (Ocwober 1, 1998)

“FTA grantees must comply with ri gorous plannmg and pnvate enterprise requirements
(49 U.8.C. 5303-5307) and the joint FTA/FHWA planning regulations. To determine the
adequacy of a grant apphcant’s efforts to incorporate private enterprise in its transit
program, FTA monitors compliance with statutory and regulatory private enterprise
requirements as part of the triennial reviews. Indced, FTA’s Fiscal Year 2000 Triennial
Review Report noted a deficiency: in RT’s public participation process. On July 3, 2001
RT took corrective action through adoprion of a Standard Operating Procedure -
- cstabhshmg a new coordination and consultation process in developing the annual fedeca]
program of projects. Upon rewew F‘I‘A acceptcd this procedure and closed the finding,

Coinpetition wit}z the private sectof )

Federal law recogmzes the specml concemns of private transportatxon providers and
affords them certain safeguards from competition with public agericies. Specxﬁcally,
FTAis prohlbued from providing Federal assistance to a governmental body that
provides service in competition with, or supplementary 1o, mass wansportation service
‘provided by a private transportation company; unless FTA finds that the local -
transportanon program developed in the planning process provxdes for participation of
private mass transportanon companies to the maximum extent feasible (499 U.S.C.

5323()(1)(B))-

RT argues that this restriction in section 5323(3)(1) apphes only if FTA funds are-
used to operate the competing service and the company. is providing “mass -
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: transportatxon service and thar neither condition i is met here.- RT states the .
Downtown Circulator service does not fall under this restriction. CBA has
provxded information to support its-assertion that the Downtown Shuttle service

-was instituted to mee, at Jeast in part, the needs of the State, as employer, to
replace the service it had prevxously contracted for with Amador.

The term “mass transportation” is defined i in section 5302(3)(7) as ‘transponatmn bya
conveyance that provides regular and continuing general or special transportation to the
public, but does not iriclude school bus, charter or sightseeing transportation.” Emphasis

added. The term “chartcx’ is deﬁned in the FTA regulatlons at 49 CFR 604. 5(e) as.
follows

“Charter Servxce" means transponatmn usmg bqses or vans, or facxlmes
funded under the Actof a group of persons who pursuant to a common -
purpose under a single contract, at a fixed charge (in accordance with the _
carrier’s tariff) for the vehicle or service, have acquired the exclusive use
of the vehicle or service to ravel together p.nder an itinerary either .
spcc:ﬁed in advancc or modlﬁed aﬁer havmg left the place of origin .

-Under thxs standard itis clear that the service Amador prowded under comract
with DGS was tharter semcc moreover, Amador is not a ‘pnvatc mass -
transportation company’ to which the protections of section 5323 apply. .

CONCLUSION

While it appears that RT could have done more to explore the use of private -
sector providers in this situation, RT has met the minimum requirements under
the law. The service RT is provxdmg, known as the Downtown Circulator, is not
charter service, but perrm issible mass transpoﬂatlon service.

In accordance thh 49 CFR 604.19, the losing pany may appeal this decision

within ten days of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent to Jennifer
Dorn, Adrmmstrator, FTA, 400 Seventh Slrcct S.w., Room 9328 Washmgton,
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